
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2015 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2015: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Rezoning Request - 117 S Shiawassee St. Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 

regarding request to rezone 117 South Shiawassee Street from RM-2, Multiple-Family Residential 
District, to B-1, Local Business District. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
 



 

2 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Glow Owosso Permission.  Approve request from Owosso Main Street for use of various downtown   

streets and a parking lot at various times on November 27, 2015 for Owosso Glow events, waive the 
insurance requirement, and approve Traffic Control Order No. 1339 formalizing the request.   
 

2. Bid Award – Stop Signs and Posts.  Approve bid award to Osburn Associates Inc. for the bulk 
purchase of stop signs and posts in the amount of $6,935.00 to comply with the Federal Retro 
Reflectivity Standard, and authorize payment up to the purchase order amount upon satisfactory 
delivery. 
 

3. Purchase Authorization – DPW Fleet Pickup Trucks.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, 
authorize purchase of five Ford pickup trucks for the DPW fleet from Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury 
in the amount of $136,545.00 utilizing State Contract No. 071B1300009, and further authorize 
payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery of the vehicles. 

 
4. Purchase Authorization – Sewer Push Camera.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize 

purchase of one 200ft VeriSight Pro-Push Camera from Bell Equipment Company in the amount of 
$8,500.00, utilizing Grand Rapids Contract No. 840-70-22, and further authorize payment in full to the 
vendor upon satisfactory delivery of the equipment with 50% of said price to be reimbursed via a 
MMRMA RAP Grant. 

 
5. Warrant No. 512.  Approve Warrant No. 512 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

William C. Brown, P.C. 
Professional service- 
October 12, 2015-November 6, 2015 

General $11,474.28

Logicalis, Inc. 
Network engineering- 
October 2015 

Various $ 7,056.00 

State of Michigan Community public water supply annual fee Water $ 5,237.59 

 
6. Check Register – October 2015.  Affirm check disbursements totaling $1,013,179.43 for the month of 

October 2015. 
  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Easement Acceptance – 1435 West North Street.  Consider acceptance of a permanent easement 

along the property at 1435 West North Street from Frederick M. & Kimberly M. Toman in the amount 
of $1.00 and other considerations. 

 
2. Contract Termination – 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program.  Consider termination of the 2015 

Sidewalk Replacement Program contract with Black Jack Asphalt. 
 
3. Purchase Agreement Extension – 1509 West Oliver Street.  Consider extending the terms of the 

purchase agreement with Cargill, Inc. for the property at 1509 West Oliver Street until March 15, 
2016. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  October 2015 Building Department Report. 
2. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  October 2015 Code Violations Report. 



 

3 
 

3. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  October 2015 Police Report. 
4. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  October 2015 Fire Report. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, November 30, 2015, 5th Monday Work Session 
Monday, December 07, 2015, Regular Meeting 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate (2), both terms expire June 30, 2018 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 
with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing or calling 
the following:  Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867 or at (989) 725-
0500. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 11-02-2015 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 2, 2015        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR BENJAMIN R. FREDERICK 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTORAL ASSOCIATE EDWARD HORSKI,      
 ST. PAUL AND ST. JOSEPH CATHOLIC CHURCHES 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: AMOS GOULD AWARD WINNER DEBRA ADAMS 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor Pro-Tem Christopher T. Eveleth, 

Councilpersons Loreen F. Bailey, Burton D. Fox, Elaine M. Greenway, 
Michael J. O’Leary, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the agenda with the addition of the following to Items of 
Business: 
 

3.  Authorize Termination of Contract.  Approve termination of the 2015 Street Patches contract  
with Black Jack Asphalt. 

 
4.  Authorize Execution of Contract.  Approve the execution of a contract for the 2015 Street 

Patches program with One-Way Asphalt Paving & Excavating Inc. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 19, 2015 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 19, 2015 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey  and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
Amos Gould Outstanding Citizen Award 
 
Mayor Frederick acknowledged past award recipients and introduced this year’s 2015 Amos Gould 
Outstanding Citizen Award winner, Debra Adams.  
 
There was a brief recess at 7:43 pm. 
Session resumed at 7:47 pm.  



Draft 2 11-02-2015 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
  

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, Owosso Township, resident, commented that our community has a large population of 
elderly and single adults that are forced to rent sleeping rooms at $300. He said that municipalities are 
dealing with this reality by embracing the micro home concept.  Zoning is being changed to allow smaller 
homes.  They were popular in the past and are becoming popular again with the income levels today. 
There are a few stand-alone cottages in Owosso today but not very many.  Mr. Manke claimed to be 
spearheading an effort to build tiny homes in our community saying he will have a home done in 30 days 
and he will display it.  He believes we need to acknowledge our elderly population and single people by 
accepting these micro homes.  Many communities have embraced these homes and the young upwardly 
mobile love them.  
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, said he had lived in one of those type houses for the first 5 years of 
his life then moved to Glenwood. 
 
Mayor Frederick commented on the successful weekend of trick or treating in the downtown.  He said that 
we are getting used to busy weekends with long lines and families enjoying the downtown.  The Main 
Street volunteers are allowing these great events to happen. 
 
Councilperson Bailey wanted to remind people to vote tomorrow.  She also said she hopes people vote 
yes. 
 
Pro-Tem Eveleth wanted to congratulate Tracy Peltier for another successful farmer’s market season.  He 
also handed out candy at the market office and was impressed by how busy the downtown was. 
 
Councilperson Greenway was curious as to where Tom Manke would like to see these micro homes go. 
Mr. Manke said that he is building a prototype and it is up to the community to decide where it will be 
placed.  He believes that a few micro houses would go on a single parcel not just random throughout the 
city. 
 
Councilperson Fox said he would like to see this work and not put too many restrictions to prevent it from 
working. 
 
Councilperson O’Leary commented that he spent 25 years working in the building and zoning field and 
these types of structures run into problems with building and zoning ordinances.  Building code is state 
law and if it is a habitable home it needs to meet the building code.  There are significant issues and 
hurdles to go through to make the idea viable. 
  

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Donald Crawford briefly detailed the latest Project Status Report. 
 
Councilperson Fox inquired about the Cargill project and access road.  City Manager Crawford stated that 
the Planning Commission meeting dealing with this will be in December, in the meantime plans continue 
to change and enlarge.  Councilperson Fox asked about the location of the road and when construction 
would take place.  City Manager Crawford stated that those were both still being discussed.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 



Draft 3 11-02-2015 
 

Set Public Hearing for Rezoning of 117 S Shiawassee St. Conduct first reading and set a public 
hearing for November 17, 2015 to receive citizen comment regarding request to rezone 117 S 
Shiawassee from RM-2 Multiple-Family Residential District to B-1 Local Business District as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 97-2015 
 

TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

TO REZONE A PORTION OF THE PARCEL AT 117 S. SHIAWASSEE STREET  
AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a petition from David Duryea, owner of real 
property identified as 117 S. Shiawassee Street, parcel number 050-700-001-013-00 to rezone the parcel 
from RM-2 Multiple-Family Residential to B-1 Local Business District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of the 
request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated on the 
request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of 117 S. Shiawassee Street as petitioned; and 
 
WHEREAS, the item must now be considered by the city council and a public hearing by the council is 
required before any such ordinance amendment can be acted upon. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city clerk: 

 
 
 
 
 

LOT 14 OF THE PLAT OF WOODARD’S SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK NO. 1 OF A. L. WILLIAMS 
ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE (NOW CITY) OF OWOSSO, SHIAWASSEE COUNTY 

    
SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing is set for Monday, November 16, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. for 
the purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance amendment. 
 
SECTION 3.  NOTICE. Council hereby directs staff to supply a public notice concerning the rezoning to a 
newspaper of general circulation within the city. 
 
SECTION 4. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
Authorize Emergency Purchase of Heating Unit. Approve emergency purchase and installation of a 
unit heater for the Wastewater Plant. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 98-2015 
 

RESOLUTION FOR THE EMERGENCY PURCHASE 
AND INSTALLATION OF A UNIT HEATER AND INSTALLATION AT THE 

WASTEWATER PLANT 

Parcel Address     Current Zoning Amended Zoning 
117 S. Shiawassee Street, 
described as follows: 

RM-2, Multiple Family 
Residential 

B-1 Local Business 
District 



Draft 4 11-02-2015 
 

WHEREAS, the wastewater treatment plant has an old boiler system which has been red tagged by the 
state of Michigan boiler inspector; and 
 
WHEREAS, the sludge hauling dump truck bay requires heat before outdoor temperatures get 
substantially below freezing which would result in the sludge freezing in the truck. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: It has been theretofore determined that the immediate purchase of a heating unit 
and installation is necessary. 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso waives the competitive bid process to allow for this emergency 

purchase. 
 
THIRD: The City of Owosso therefore authorizes $10,350.00 for the purchase of a Sterling TC 

200AN211D 200,000 BTU natural gas two stage heat exchanger and installation by 
Victory Heating & Cooling in accordance with the attached estimate 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the wastewater fund 599-901- 975.000. 

 
Warrant No. 511. Authorize Warrant No. 511 as follows:  
 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson O’Leary, Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Greenway, Teich, Bailey, Fox,                             

and Mayor Frederick 
 
NAYS: None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Approve Release of Special Assessment ï 1711 Frederick Street 
 
Motion by Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the release of the special assessment on 1711 Frederick Street.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 99-2015 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ON THE PROPERTY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 1711 FREDERICK STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso undertook the condemnation and demolition upon real property within the 
corporate limits of the city of Owosso owned by Samuel T. Harwood, 24 Calle Lila, Sante Fe, New Mexico 
and further described as: 
 
 050-602-020-002-00 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Key Government Finance Inc 
Annual payment on phone 
system – 4 of 5 payments 

General $26,256.84 

Michigan Municipal League 
Workers’ Compensation Fund 

Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance 

Various $19,823.00 



Draft 5 11-02-2015 
 

E ½ LOTS 2 & 3, ALSO W ½ ADJ VAC ALLEY, BLK 20 M L STEWART & CO'S 2ND ADDN;  
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso by motion duly seconded and passed, assessed the cost of demolition by 
special assessment upon the owners thereof, in the sum of $9,221.88 together with interest as set forth in 
Resolution No. 16-2014 Hazards & Nuisances Roll for 1711 Frederick Street approved February 18, 2014 
and recorded in the office of the Shiawassee County Register of Deeds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the property was sold by the state of Michigan for delinquent taxes, charges and 
assessments with insufficient amounts to pay off the special assessment; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order for the current owner to have clear title it is necessary for the city of Owosso to 
discharge the special assessment lien. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  the Owosso City Council discharges the special assessment for 050-602-020-002-00 E ½ 
LOTS 2 & 3, ALSO W ½ ADJ VAC ALLEY, BLK 20 M L STEWART & CO'S 2ND ADDN. 

 
SECOND: the city clerk is authorized and directed to instruct the Shiawassee County Register of 

Deeds to remove the special assessment lien from 050-602-020-002-00 E ½ LOTS 2 & 
3, ALSO W ½ ADJ VAC ALLEY, BLK 20 M L STEWART & CO'S 2ND ADDN and to take 
any other actions as necessary and appropriate to remove the special assessment lien. 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson O’Leary. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES:  Councilperson Teich, Fox, Greenway, Pro Tem Eveleth, Councilperson O’Leary and 

Bailey and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS:               None. 
 
Authorize Execution of Agreement for HVAC Services  
 
Councilperson Fox acknowledged the reasonable hourly rate for labor in the contract, but was concerned 
that there was no warranty for labor.  
 
City Manager Crawford commented that there typically is not a warranty for labor on preventative 
maintenance.  He stated that the city wanted to make sure equipment was being properly maintained and 
that parts will be warranted.  
 
Councilperson Fox made a motion to request a 30-day warranty in the contract before approval. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson O’Leary. 
 
Pro-Tem Eveleth and Councilperson Teich had issues with the idea that old equipment could act up at 
any time and that the inspector would not be at fault if an old part failed after the inspection.   
 
The Council further deliberated the issue with a 30-day warranty on the labor for preventative 
maintenance.  
 
Motion by Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the agreement for HVAC services as written. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 100-2015 
 



Draft 6 11-02-2015 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT  
FOR PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE AND ON-SITE REPAIR SERVICES  

WITH BRAD HURLEY, SOLE PROPRIETOR, D/B/A VICTORY HEATING AND COOLING 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that providing heat, air 
conditioning and ventilation to city-owned buildings (city hall, public safety building, library, Curwood 
Castle), public works building, water filtration plant, wastewater treatment plant and Gould House) is 
advisable, necessary and in the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to maintain and repair such equipment requires skilled services beyond 
those available from city employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brad Hurley, sole proprietor, d/b/a Victory Heating and Cooling has the skills for 
maintaining and repairing the systems in city-owned buildings. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to employ Brad Hurley, sole proprietor, d/b/a Victory Heating and 
Cooling. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are hereby instructed and authorized to sign the documents 

attached as Exhibit A, agreement for preventive maintenance and on-site repair 
services with Brad Hurley, sole proprietor, d/b/a Victory Heating and Cooling for the 
city of Owosso. 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey.  
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES:  Councilperson Greenway, Bailey, Pro Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Teich, and Mayor 

Frederick. 
 
NAYS:  Councilperson O’Leary and Fox 
 
Mayor Frederick clarified that Councilperson Fox’s motion to request a 30-day warranty was moot, which 
was confirmed by City Attorney Bill Brown.  
 
Termination of Contract ï 2015 Street Patch Contract 
 
City Manager Crawford explained that Black Jack Asphalt has been unable to provide the services they 
were contracted for.  Staff recommends terminating the contract. The next item on the agenda will 
address who will take over the contract and complete the work. 
 
Motion by Pro-Tem Eveleth to terminate the contract with Black Jack Asphalt 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 101-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF A CONTRACT  
FOR THE 2015 STREET PATCHES PROGRAM 
WITH BIBI, INC. AKA BLACK JACK ASPHALT 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that the street patches in 
many of the streets in the city need to be permanently repaired with a hot mixed asphalt to prevent water 



Draft 7 11-02-2015 
 

from getting into the sub base of the street, accelerating the deterioration of the street pavement, and that 
this pavement maintenance is advisable, necessary and in the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids to permanently patch said areas; a bid was received from 
Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt; and it was determined that Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt  was 
qualified to provide such services and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso awarded a bid and entered into a contract with  Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack 
Asphalt which has been unable to fulfill the contract. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:        The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to terminate the contract with Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt for 
pavement patching as part of the 2015 Street Patches Program. 

  
SECOND:   The city manager along with other appropriate city officials is hereby authorized to take 

the required actions to terminate the contract that was awarded in the amount of 
$32,264.80. 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson O’Leary, Teich, Fox, Bailey, Pro Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Greenway, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
Authorize Execution of Contract ï 2015 Street Patch Contract 
 
Motion by Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the contract with One-Way Asphalt for the 2015 Street Patch 
program as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 102-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR THE 2015 STREET PATCHES PROGRAM 
WITH ONE-WAY ASPHALT PAVING & EXCAVATING, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan has determined that the street patches in 
many of the streets in the city need to be permanently repaired with a hot mixed asphalt to prevent water 
from getting into the sub base of the street, accelerating the deterioration of the street pavement, and that 
this pavement maintenance is advisable, necessary and in the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso awarded the bid for said work to Black Jack Asphalt on August 17, 2015; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the contractor failed to perform to the standards required in the contract and the contract was 
terminated on November 2, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, the next to lowest bid was received from One-Way Asphalt Paving & Excavating, Inc.; and it 
is hereby determined that One-Way Asphalt Paving & Excavating, Inc. is qualified to provide such 
services and that it has submitted a responsible and responsive bid. 
 



Draft 8 11-02-2015 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 
  

FIRST:       The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ One-Way Asphalt Paving & Excavating, Inc. for pavement 
patching as part of the 2015 Street Patches Program. 

  
SECOND:  The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached as Exhibit A, Contract for Services Between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and One-Way Asphalt Paving & Excavating. Inc. based upon unit pricing. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay One-Way Asphalt Paving 
 & Excavating, Inc. for work satisfactorily completed on the project up to the bid amount of 

$44, 035.25. 
 
FOURTH:  The above expenses shall be paid from Water Maintenance Fund accounts 591-552-

833.300 and 591-552-833.200. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey  
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson Bailey, Fox, O’Leary, Greenway, Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Teich, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
Mayor Frederick noted his appreciation for staff work on this saying there needs to be consequences 
when expectations on contracts are not being met. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals.  Minutes of October 20, 2015. 
Susan K. Montenegro, Assistant City Manager. Trebor Update.    
Parks and Recreation Commission.  Minutes of October 26, 2015 
Planning Commission. Minutes of October 26, 2015  
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, Owosso Township resident, wanted to remind the Council of the local preference policy for 
bidders. And that Black Jack was the low bid for street patching. 
 
Ed Urban, 601 Glenwood, discussed the courts and veterans in the system.   
 
Mayor Frederick commented on and invited the public to view the new mural on the Wildermuth Hotel.  It 
was completed by the same artist that did the Durand Depot mural. It was completed in a day and a half 
on the south face of the building on the corner of Comstock and Washington.  He said there was great 
support for this project from Indian Trails and the Wildermuth Faimly.  He joked that Indian Trails has 
received inquiries about rooms, but that the prices would have gone up by now.  Staff is aware they have 
expressed interest in the façade program. 
 



Draft 9 11-02-2015 
 

Councilperson Fox said that Friday night is going be a great night in the city. The official lighting on the 
marquee of the Lebowsky Theater for a multi-million dollar project that will be an anchor to the city will 
take place that night. And he suggested that everyone should go out and see ghost. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, November 16, 2015 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate (2), both terms expire June 30, 2018 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth for adjournment at 8:37 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Tyler J. Leppanen, Recording Secretary 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: November 12, 2015 
 
TO: City Council  
  
FROM: Susan Montenegro, Asst. City Manager/Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Rezoning of 117 S. Shiawassee Street 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Planning Commission recommends city council conduct first reading and set a public hearing for 
November 17, 2015 to receive citizen comment regarding request to rezone the parcel commonly known 
as 117 S. Shiawassee Street, from RM-2 Multiple-Family Residential District to B-1 Local Business 
District. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
 
The Planning Commission, after mailing notices and holding a public hearing, voted at its regular meeting 
on October 26, 2015 to recommend rezoning the aforementioned parcel.  Further, staff recommends 
approval of this petition to rezone property as submitted subject to the ordinance reading and public 
hearing process. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Rezoning should not pose any fiscal impacts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Susan Montenegro 

 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

TO REZONE THE PARCEL AT 117 S. SHIAWASSEE STREET  
AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a petition from David Duryea, owner of real 
property identified as 117 S. Shiawassee Street, parcel number 050-700-001-013-00, and described as 
follows, to rezone the parcel from RM-2 Multiple-Family Residential to B-1 Local Business District:  
 

LOT 14 OF THE PLAT OF WOODARD’S SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK NO. 1 OF A. L. 
WILLIAMS ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE (NOW CITY) OF OWOSSO, SHIAWASSEE 
COUNTY; and 

 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of the 
request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated on the 
request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of 117 S. Shiawassee Street as petitioned; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing November 16, 2015 and having heard all interested 
persons and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council find that the zoning petition meets the intent and criteria for a zoning map 
amendment, specifically as it relates to the requirements of Section 38-555 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Owosso. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city clerk: 

 
SECTION 2. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective December 7, 2015. 

Parcel Address     Parcel Number Current Zoning Amended Zoning 

117 S. Shiawassee St  050-700-001-013-00 
RM-2 

Multiple Family Residential 
B-1  

Local Business District 









 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   November 10, 2015 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Glow Owosso Permission, Traffic Control Order #1339 
 
 
Owosso Main Street proposes the use of the following for the Glow Owosso events being held 
on November 27th 2015.  
 

1. Main Street Plaza from 3:00 pm to 9:00 pm, for Glow Owosso Tree Lighting 
Ceremonies.  

 
2.  E. Oliver; from N. Dewey St. to N. Washington St. and N. Washington St. from  

E. Oliver to Jerome Ave. for annual Glow Parade 
 
3.  Mason St, from Water to Washington St.; Washington St from Mason to North St. North 

St, east to the entrance to Owosso High School. This request is for the 5K run  
 that begins at 5:30 pm and ends at 8:00 pm.  

 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order No. 1339 in accordance with the 
Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders.  Staff recommends approval of the 
application, waiver of the insurance requirement, and authorization of a traffic control order 
formalizing the action. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1339    11/10/15     2:00 pm 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Main Street Plaza Closure, Street Closure 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL  
    

1. Main St. Plaza  
2. E. Oliver; from N. Dewey St; to N. Washington St; and N. Washington 

from E. Oliver to Jerome Avenue – Glow Parade 
3. Mason St. from Water to Washington St.; Washington St. from Mason 

to North St.  North St., east to the entrance to Owosso High School.  
This request is for the 5k run that begins at 5:30 pm and ends at 8:00 
pm.   
   

          
 EVENT:   Friday, November 27, 2015 
 

1. Glow Owosso Tree Lighting Ceremony: 3:00 pm – 9:00 pm 
2. Glow Parade:  5:30 pm – 8:00 pm 
3. Glow 5K Run Walk:  2:00 pm – 7:00 pm 

 
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 



AKKirkland
Pencil



AKKirkland
Pencil



AKKirkland
Pencil





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: November 16, 2015 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark A. Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT:              Purchase of stop signs and posts 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
I recommend that council approve the purchase of 250 stop signs at $21.38 each ($5,345.00); 50 all way 
signs at $2.84 each ($142.00) and 100 2# U posts at $14.48 each ($1,448.00) for a total of $6,935.00 
from Osburn Associates Inc. 
  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
This purchase is required to comply with the Federal Retro Reflectivity Standard 23 CFR Part 655. Please 
see the attached document entitled “Sign Management Program for City of Owosso” for further detail on 
Federal sign requirements. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The signs will be put into inventory account 101-000-160000 and be charged to Local (203-474-728000) 
and Major (202-474-728000) streets as they are installed. 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR THE  
PURCHASE OF STOP SIGNS, ALL WAY SIGNS, AND U POSTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined it necessary to purchase 
stop signs, all way signs and U posts to comply with the Federal Retro Reflectivity Standard 23 CFR 
PART 655; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff received 11 bids for the noted signs and posts and the lowest bid was from Osburn 
Associates, Inc. in the amount of $6,935.00. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase 250 stop signs for $5,345.00, 50 “All Way” signs for $142.00 
and 100 2# U posts for $1,448.00 from Osburn Associates, Inc.. 

 
SECOND: The contract between the City and Osburn Associates, Inc. shall be in the form of a city 

purchase order for the amount of $6,935.00. 
  
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Osburn Associates, Inc. up to the 

purchase order amount upon satisfactory delivery of said product. 
  
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be initially paid from the inventory account,101-000-160000, 

until installed, at which time they will be expensed to the major and local street funds 
(202-474-728000 & 203-474-728000). 





                                     CITY OF OWOSSO BID TABULATION SHEET - PAGE 1 OF 4 DATE 10/20/2015
DEPT. DPW

SUBJECT: SIGN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
CITY SIGN ERECTORS DORNBOS SIGN, INC. EAGLE SIGN & DESIGN

EST. UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

1 STOP R1-1 SIGN-30"X30" 250 EA 50.060$            12,515.00$              22.040$              5,510.00$                    31.220$                7,805.00$                 

2 ALL WAY R1-4 SIGN 18"X6" 50 EA 10.56$              528.00$                   3.00$                  150.00$                       7.28$                    364.00$                    

3 GREEN U-CHANNEL SIGN POST 100 EA 34.07$              3,407.00$                14.24$                1,424.00$                    24.18$                  2,418.00$                 

PLUS SHIPPING 200.00$                    

TOTAL BID 16,450.00$              7,084.00$                    10,787.00$               

TOTAL BID PRICING ADJUSTED FOR LOCAL PURCHASING PREFERENCE: 17,437.00$              7,509.04$                    11,434.22$               

DEPT.
HEAD: EXPIRATION DATE: AWARDED:

PURCH. WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE COUNCIL
AGENT: EXPIRATION DATE: APPROVED:

STAFF SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 
REC.: EXPIRATION DATE: PO NUMBER:

                                     CITY OF OWOSSO BID TABULATION SHEET - PAGE 2 OF 4 DATE 10/20/2015

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
Osburn Associates



DEPT. DPW
SUBJECT: SIGN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

EDWARDS SIGN & SCREEN- GARDEN STATE HIGHWAY LIGHTLE ENTERPRISES OF
PRINTING PRODUCTS OHIO

EST. UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

1 STOP R1-1 SIGN-30"X30" 250 EA 62.020$            15,505.00$              27.440$              6,860.00$                    25.750$                6,437.50$                 

2 ALL WAY R1-4 SIGN 18"X6" 50 EA 12.40$              620.00$                   3.89$                  194.50$                       3.75$                    187.50$                    

3 GREEN U-CHANNEL SIGN POST 100 EA 29.80$              2,980.00$                18.66$                1,866.00$                    18.64$                  1,864.00$                 

1/2 DOWN DEPOSIT REQUIRED

TOTAL BID 19,105.00$              8,920.50$                    8,489.00$                 

TOTAL BID PRICING ADJUSTED FOR LOCAL PURCHASING PREFERENCE: 19,105.00$              9,455.73$                    8,998.34$                 

                                     CITY OF OWOSSO BID TABULATION SHEET - PAGE 3 OF 4 DATE 10/20/2015
DEPT. DPW



SUBJECT: SIGN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
MD SOLUTIONS NEWMAN SIGNS, INC. OSBURN ASSOCIATES INC.

EST. UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

1 STOP R1-1 SIGN-30"X30" 250 EA 25.500$            6,375.00$                23.900$              5,975.00$                    21.380$                5,345.00$                 

2 ALL WAY R1-4 SIGN 18"X6" 50 EA 3.25$                162.50$                   5.91$                  295.50$                       2.84$                    142.00$                    

3 GREEN U-CHANNEL SIGN POST 100 EA 15.60$              1,560.00$                17.05$                1,705.00$                    14.48$                  1,448.00$                 

TOTAL BID 8,097.50$                7,975.50$                    6,935.00$                 

TOTAL BID PRICING ADJUSTED FOR LOCAL PURCHASING PREFERENCE: 8,583.35$                8,454.03$                    7,351.10$                 

                                     CITY OF OWOSSO BID TABULATION SHEET - PAGE 4 OF 4 DATE 10/20/2015
DEPT. DPW



SUBJECT: SIGN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
RATHCO SAFETY SUPPLY VULCAN SIGNS

EST. UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

1 STOP R1-1 SIGN-30"X30" 250 EA 26.870$            6,717.50$                20.950$              5,237.50$                    -$                         

2 ALL WAY R1-4 SIGN 18"X6" 50 EA 3.34$                167.00$                   3.15$                  157.50$                       -$                         

3 GREEN U-CHANNEL SIGN POST 100 EA 16.08$              1,608.00$                15.91$                1,591.00$                    -$                         

TOTAL BID 8,492.50$                6,986.00$                    -$                         

TOTAL BID PRICING ADJUSTED FOR LOCAL PURCHASING PREFERENCE: 9,002.05$                7,405.16$                    



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
 
DATE: November 12, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM:  Mark Mitchell Public Works Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT:  Fleet pickup purchases 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommend council waive the competitive bid process and approve the purchase of five new pickups for 
the DPW using State of Michigan Contract No. 071B1300009. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Owosso City Ordinance section 2-345(3) exception to competitive bidding states:  Where the council shall 
determine that the public interest will best be served by joint purchase with, or purchase from, another 
unit of government.  
 
Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury was awarded the State of Michigan bid for vehicles of which pickups are 
included.  The bid meets the definition of the aforementioned Section 2-345(3) joint purchase with another 
governmental unit.  The State bid price varies with the options needed for particular units.  
 
The vehicles purchased will be: 
 

2  4X2 Pickups   DPW 
2 4X4 Pickups   DPW 
1  4X2 Pickup w/Utility box  DPW  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
We have not purchased trucks in a number of years, hence the number of vehicles requested.  These 
trucks will help upgrade the current fleet, older trucks will be repurposed or sold.  Payment for these 
vehicles will come from the following account: 
 

DPW  Acct. # 661-901-979000  $136,545.00 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Mark Mitchell, Public Works Superintendent.  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF FLEET VEHICLES (PICKUPS) 
FROM OWOSSO MOTORS, INC. D/B/A SIGNATURE FORD LINCOLN MERCURY 

UTILIZING CONTRACT # 071B1300009 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Public Works Department requiring 
the use of pickups; and 
 
WHEREAS, these vehicles must be periodically replaced to ensure a mechanically sound and reliable 
fleet is available at all times; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase five new pickups at this time and staff has 
determined it is in the best interest of the City to utilize State of Michigan Contract No. 071B1300009, 
held by Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury, for said purchase; and  
 
WHEREAS, city ordinance section 2-345(3) provides for an exception to competitive bidding when the 
best interest of the city would be served by jointly purchasing with another governmental unit. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase the following vehicles from Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury 
using State of Michigan Contract No. 071B1300009: 

 
  2 4X2 Pickups   DPW  $23,960.00 ea  
  2 4X4 Pickups  DPW  $27,129.00 ea   
  1 4X2 Utility Truck DPW  $34,367.00 ea 
  
SECOND: The Deputy Director of Public Services is hereby instructed and authorized to sign any 

necessary documents to complete said purchase. 
 
THIRD: Payment is authorized to Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury in an amount not to exceed 

$136,545.00 upon delivery and acceptance of the vehicles.  Payment shall be made for 
vehicles as they become available and satisfactorily delivered. 

 
FOURTH: Said purchase shall be paid for using funds from the following account in the noted 

amount: 
 

DPW  Acct. # 661-901-979000  $136,545.00 
 

 
 
 



































 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  Ā   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 Ā   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: November 12, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Utility Director 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase of Sewer Push Camera 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorization and approval to purchase a portable sewer push camera from Bell Equipment Company of 
Lake Orion, Michigan, and to accept a 50% reimbursement Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) Grant for the 
purchase of said camera, which is provided by the City of Owosso's insurance carrier Michigan Municipal 
Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) of Livonia, Michigan. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
The State of Michigan Public Act 222 clarifies municipal liability for sewer backups, which the Michigan 
Legislature enacted and became effective December 21, 2001.  The RAP Grant provided by MMRMA is 
intended to assist member municipalities in compliance with PA222.  Implementation of a Collection 
System Preventive Maintenance Program is the first step in initiating compliance with PA222.  An 
essential piece of equipment for a Preventive Maintenance Program is a sewer camera for conducting 
investigations, troubleshooting, and determining the complexity of repair or routine required maintenance.  
The utilization of this equipment also represents a proactive approach to addressing known or suspected 
problems in the collection system, which can serve to avoid legitimate claims against the municipality.  
 
The City of Grand Rapids solicited competitive bidding for sewer televising equipment and other related 
accessories earlier in 2015.  Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, Michigan was the low responsive 
bidder for these items.  Bell Equipment has agreed to allow the City of Owosso to piggyback onto the 
same contract at the same prices as specified with the City of Grand Rapids.  The specific equipment the 
Owosso Utilities Department seeks to purchase from Bell Equipment is the 130ft VeriSight Pro-Push 
Camera.  However, Bell Equipment has offered to discount the 200ft VeriSight Pro-Push Camera 
$1,220.00, and sell to Owosso at the same price as the 130ft reel unit.  This is very acceptable. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Purchase of the 200ft VeriSight Pro-Push Camera equipment is $8,500.00.  A 50% Risk Avoidance 
Program (RAP) Grant reimbursement in the amount of $4,250.00 will result in an actual expense to the 
Collections Equipment account #590-901-977000 of only $4,250.00. 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Glenn M. Chinavare, Utility Director  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A SEWER PUSH CAMERA 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Utility Department Sewer Collections 
desires to purchase a 200’ VeriSight Pro-Push Sewer Camera; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received a copy of a formal solicitation No.840-70-22 for competitive bids 
on sewer televising equipment provided by the City of Grand Rapids; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will piggyback onto the same competitive bid contract as provided by the 
City of Grand Rapids; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low responsive bidder Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, Michigan will offer the 
same unit price for said equipment to the City of Owosso as was bid for the City of Grand Rapids; and   
 
WHEREAS,  a 200ft VeriSight Pro-Push Camera is available from Bell Equipment Company at the low 
responsive bid price of $8,500.00 through the Grand Rapids competitive bid contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of this equipment qualifies for and has been approved for a 50% 
reimbursement Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) Grant by the City of Owosso insurance carrier Michigan 
Municipal Risk Management Authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of this equipment will significantly assist in the identification of systematic 
problems in piping systems to avoid future claims and/or more expensive repairs when discovered, and 
will enhance the necessary compliance with the State of Michigan Public Act 222 regarding sanitary 
sewer backups; and       
 
WHEREAS, this is a budgeted item from the Collections Equipment fund. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase a 200ft VeriSight Pro-Push Camera from Bell Equipment 
Company of Lake Orion, Michigan, utilizing City of Grand Rapids Contract No. 840-70-22,  
at a cost to the City of Owosso of $8,500.00. 

 
SECOND: The contract between the City and Bell Equipment shall be in the form of a City purchase 

order in the amount of $8,500.00. 
 
THIRD: Payment is authorized to Bell Equipment Company upon satisfactory receipt of said 

equipment. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Collections Equipment account # 590-901-

977000 with 50% of the purchase price reimbursed via a RAP Grant from Michigan 
Municipal Risk Management Authority. 

 
  
 





 

 
 

WARRANT 512 
                November 10, 2015   
   

      
Vendor Description Fund Amount 

    
William C. Brown, P.C. Professional service-October 12, 

2015-November 6, 2015 
General $11,474.28 

 

Logicalis, Inc. Network engineering- 
October 2015 
 
 
 

Various $ 7,056.00 
 
 
 

State of Michigan Community public water supply 
annual fee 

Water $ 5,237.59 

    

  TOTAL         $23,767.87 
    

 



Check Date Bank Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank 1 GENERAL FUND (POOLED CASH)

10/02/2015 1 125643 JARVIS AUBREY UB refund for account: 4651000002 19.25$            

10/02/2015 1 125644 CIVILLE REAL ESTATE UB refund for account: 1808000004 43.00$            

10/02/2015 1 125645 HOENSHELL GREGORY UB refund for account: 2228190003 18.00$            

10/02/2015 1 125646 REO UTILITIES UB refund for account: 1805500003 54.78$            

10/02/2015 1 125647 BARB ROLL WYZGA REALTY UB refund for account: 2197590005 43.89$            

10/02/2015 1 125648 TONY SCHMIDT REALTY UB refund for account: 1279000003 59.78$            

10/02/2015 1 125649 BOWEN JEFFREY UB refund for account: 2415390003 22.78$            

10/02/2015 1 125650 ACCUMED BILLING INC AUG 2015-AMBULANCE BILLING SERVICES & STATE REPORTING 5,513.44$       

10/02/2015 1 125651 ADVANCED TREE CARE SERVICE INC 2014 TREE REMOVAL PROGRAM 403.65$          

10/02/2015 1 125652 LOREEN F BAILEY REIMBURSEMENT CAT EXPENSES-PAID BY DONATIONS 150.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125653 RICHARD BREWBAKER FIRE INSPECTORS CONFERENCE MILEAGE 132.94$          

10/02/2015 1 125654 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC USAGE 24,723.97$     

10/02/2015 1 125655 JUDY ELAINE CRAIG COURIER SERVICE 189.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125656 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS OCTOBER 2015-PHONE & BROADBAND INTERNET 979.62$          

10/02/2015 1 125657 DELTA FAMILY CLINIC SOUTH  PC PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 2,450.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125658 FIREPROGRAMS SUPPORT AND UPGRADE SERVICE 1,500.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125659 FRONTIER TRAFFIC SIGNALS 105.41$          

10/02/2015 1 125660 TIMOTHY J GUYSKY WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATION MEMBERSHIP-REIMBURSEMENT 127.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125661 H20 COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC INSPECTION SERVICES FOR CROSS CONNECTION 838.75$          

10/02/2015 1 125662 HERITAGE ACRES VETERINARY SERVICES VET SERVICES FOR CATS-PAID BY DONATIONS 101.73$          

10/02/2015 1 125663 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES MATERIALS/SUPPLIES 2,714.64$       

10/02/2015 1 125664 HP ENTERPRISE SERVICES LLC DELL PCS AND MONITORS 1,669.04$       

10/02/2015 1 125665 INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS MEMBERSHIP-AMY KIRKLAND AND ROXANE CRAMER 250.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125666 IPMA-HR POLICE SGT PROMOTIONAL EXAMS 175.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125667 LANDMARK SURVEYING PC SURVEY LOT ON S LANSING ST 1,750.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125668 KEVIN LENKART OCT 24, 2015-IACP CONFERENCE 370.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125669 BRIAN MATTHIES MEAL WHILE ON TRANSFER 13.76$            

10/02/2015 1 125670 MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE CENTER OPD-BLOOD DRAW 17.75$            

10/02/2015 1 125671 MICHIGAN BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL ASSO OCTOBER 2015-COBRA ADMIN FEE 50.00$            

10/02/2015 1 125672 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT FY 15/16-BUILDING AND PROPERTY INSURANCE 117,275.00$  

10/02/2015 1 125673 MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION CITY MEMBERSHIP-7/1/15-6/30/16 735.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125674 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 1,827.81$       

10/02/2015 1 125675 SUSAN K MONTENEGRO REIMBURSEMENT-FLIGHT TO SEATTLE-CONFERENCE 396.20$          

10/02/2015 1 125676 NATIONAL VISION ADMINISTRATORS LLC OCT 2015-VISION INSURANCE PREMIUM 509.37$          

10/02/2015 1 125677 NEOPOST USA INC POSTAGE METER FUNDS 1,000.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125678 NORTHSIDE ANIMAL HOSPITAL VET SERVICES FOR CATS-PAID BY DONATIONS 198.95$          

10/02/2015 1 125679 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLIES 129.17$          

10/02/2015 1 125680 ORCHARD HILTZ & MCCLIMENT INC SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM ASSET MGT PROGRAM 1,713.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125681 JOSEPH F NOWACKI OPD-RESET COMBO ON SAFE 60.00$            

10/02/2015 1 125682 GARY L PALMER ELECTRICAL INSPECTION SERVICE 500.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125683 KASIE ROBBINS MEAL DURING TRANSFER 10.04$            

10/02/2015 1 125684 S & K FARM & YARD WTP-USED TROY BUILT PUSH MOWER 125.00$          

10/02/2015 1 125685 SHIAWASSEE ECONOMIC DEV PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT 31,426.00$     

10/02/2015 1 125686 SHIREEN INC WTP-PARTS FOR REMOTE MONITORING OF WELL 95.95$            

10/02/2015 1 125687 SNYDER REAL ESTATE ASSOC, INC. APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR THE TEGRANT TRIBUNAL 1,500.00$       

10/02/2015 1 125688 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM 3,608.38$       

10/02/2015 1 125689 VERIZON WIRELESS PUBLIC SAFETY-MODEM FEES-8/11/15-9/10/15 237.72$          

                                                 CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF OWOSSO                                                 

                                              CHECK DATE FROM 10/01/2015 - 10/31/2015                                              

1



10/02/2015 1 125690 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC OCT 2015-REFUSE SERVICE 394.01$          

10/02/2015 1 828(A) MICHAEL LEVERE ASH CONTRACT SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-72 HOURS 1,317.60$       

10/02/2015 1 829(A) BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY FLEET-BROOMS FOR SWEEPER 553.00$          

10/02/2015 1 830(A) HEATHER DAWN BROOKS LEAF PICK UP SIGNS 310.00$          

10/02/2015 1 831(A) WILLIAM C BROWN, P C PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12,074.92$     

10/02/2015 1 832(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. HARD DRIVE 132.82$          

10/02/2015 1 833(A) C E & A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC RANDOM DOT DRUG TESTING 365.88$          

10/02/2015 1 834(A) D & G EQUIPMENT INC FLEET-PARTS 131.31$          

10/02/2015 1 835(A) DENICE A GRACE RECORDING SERVICES FOR PLANNING /OWOSSO PARKS AND REC 60.00$            

10/02/2015 1 836(A) HALLIGAN ELECTRIC INC WWTP-ELECTRICAL WORK 510.00$          

10/02/2015 1 837(A) IDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION WTP-LAB SUPPLIES 192.58$          

10/02/2015 1 838(A) J & B MEDICAL SUPPLY INC OFD-AMBULANCE MEDICAL SUPPLIES 638.15$          

10/02/2015 1 839(A) MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO WWTP-PARTS 75.32$            

10/02/2015 1 840(A) OFFICE SOURCE SUPPLIES 332.86$          

10/02/2015 1 841(A) OFFICEMAX INC SUPPLIES 317.15$          

10/02/2015 1 842(A) SOLARWINDS DAMEWARE REMOTE SUPPORT 123.00$          

10/02/2015 1 843(A) SPICER GROUP, INC. DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 1,377.04$       

10/02/2015 1 844(A) SWIM LLC UTILITIES DIRECTOR SERVICES 2,016.00$       

10/02/2015 1 845(A) MERLE E WEST II PLUMBING/MECHANICAL INSPECTION SERVICES 600.00$          

10/02/2015 1 846(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER CONTRACT SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-70/HOURS 1,281.00$       

Total For 10/02/2015: 228,637.41$  

10/19/2015 1 125691 ACCUMED BILLING INC AMBULANCE BILLING SERVICES & STATE REPORTING 5,972.92$       

10/19/2015 1 125692 AFLAC AFLAC PREMIUM-PAYROLL DEDUCTION 488.08$          

10/19/2015 1 125693 MARK D AGNEW OPD-REMOVE GRAPHICS UNIT 87 125.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125694 THE ARGUS PRESS PRINTING OF LEGAL NOTICES ETC 198.13$          

10/19/2015 1 125695 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 2009 LTGO BONDS-PAYMENT 18,843.75$     

10/19/2015 1 125696 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 2013 UNLIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS-PAYMENT 43,600.00$     

10/19/2015 1 125697 BIDNET FEES FOR SALE OF VEHICLES 235.05$          

10/19/2015 1 125698 CHEMICAL BANK WEALTH MANAGEMENT 2010 GO BONDS-PAYMENT 38,451.25$     

10/19/2015 1 125699 DAVE COLLARD MASONRY & CONCRETE, INC SIDEWALK REPAIRS 4,217.50$       

10/19/2015 1 125700 COMMERCIAL BLUEPRINT, INC. BOND PAPER FOR ENGINEERING PRINTER 292.75$          

10/19/2015 1 125701 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 24,766.34$     

10/19/2015 1 125702 VOID -$                

Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process

10/19/2015 1 125703 D & D TRUCK & TRAILER PARTS PARTS 989.42$          

10/19/2015 1 125704 DALTON ELEVATOR SEPT 15-CYLINDER RENTAL-SUPPLIES-OXYGEN 546.46$          

10/19/2015 1 125705 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF MICHIGAN DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUM 3,897.11$       

10/19/2015 1 125706 FEDEX WWTP-LAB SHIPPING FEES 11.19$            

10/19/2015 1 125707 FISHER CHIPPEWA  REDI-MIX, INC. CONCRETE FOR CATCH BASIN REPAIRS 221.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125708 MATTHEW S FRAY MEALS WHILE TRAINING 20.00$            

10/19/2015 1 125709 FUOSS GRAVEL COMPANY 22A GRAVEL-196.72 TONS 2,991.42$       

10/19/2015 1 125710 HURON  VALLEY ASSO OF CODE OFFICIAL MEMBERSHIP-CHARLES RAU-7/1/15-6/30/16 95.00$            

10/19/2015 1 125711 INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO INC SUPPLIES 134.25$          

10/19/2015 1 125712 KAR LABORATORIES INC WASTEWATER ANALYSES 195.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125713 MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE CENTER OPD-LAB 69.75$            

10/19/2015 1 125714 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF HOUSING OFFICIALS MEMBERSHIP-CHARLES RAU 80.00$            

10/19/2015 1 125715 MICHIGAN WATER ENVIRONMENT ASSOCIATION REGISTRATION-T GUYSKY-CONTRACT/BLUEPRINT READING 125.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125716 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 1,827.81$       

10/19/2015 1 125717 SUSAN K MONTENEGRO REIMBURSEMENT-CONFERENCE TAXI FARES/PARKING 221.70$          

10/19/2015 1 125718 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS SEPT 2015-MONTHLY COMMUNICATIONS CHARGES 1,046.37$       

2



10/19/2015 1 125719 OWOSSO-WATER FUND WATER/SEWER USAGE 5,379.40$       

10/19/2015 1 125720 POLICE OFFICERS LABOR COUNCIL UNION DUES-PAYROLL DEDUCTION 833.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125721 SMITH JANITORIAL SUPPLY SUPPLIES 326.48$          

10/19/2015 1 125722 SOUTHSIDE CAR WASH OPD-JULY - SEPT 2015-CAR WASHES 115.00$          

10/19/2015 1 125723 STECHSCHULTE GAS & OIL, INC. FUEL-PE 9/30/15 4,243.38$       

10/19/2015 1 125724 U S BANK, N A 2012B WATER REVENUE BONDS-PAYMENT 352,006.25$  

10/19/2015 1 125725 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING CHARGES 25.50$            

10/19/2015 1 125726 VALLEY LUMBER MATERIALS 144.72$          

10/19/2015 1 125727 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC LANDFILL DISPOSAL CHARGES-9/16/15-9/30/15 3,090.38$       

10/19/2015 1 125728 WILLOUGHBY PRESS WORK ORDERS-2500 562.25$          

10/19/2015 1 125729 WIN'S ELECTRICAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO SUPPLIES 262.89$          

10/19/2015 1 847(A) ALS LABORATORY GROUP WASTEWATER ANALYSES 9.50$              

10/19/2015 1 848(A) MICHAEL LEVERE ASH SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-71/HRS 1,299.30$       

10/19/2015 1 849(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. SYMANTEC ANTIVIRUS (60) 1,995.00$       

10/19/2015 1 850(A) CENTRON DATA SERVICES, INC. WATER/SEWER BILL PRINTING SERVICES FOR OCTOBER 2015 4,717.24$       

10/19/2015 1 851(A) DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS WTP-FILE CABINET 199.00$          

10/19/2015 1 852(A) DUPERON LEASING & SALES INC SCREENING EQUIPMENT LEASE 3,630.00$       

10/19/2015 1 853(A) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT CONCEPTS INC OCTOBER 2015-MONTHLY ADMIN FEE 120.00$          

10/19/2015 1 854(A) ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOCIATES WTP-ANNUAL LAB CERTIFICATION 300.26$          

10/19/2015 1 855(A) ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY WATER INVENTORY 2,162.56$       

10/19/2015 1 856(A) GILBERT'S DO IT BEST HARDWARE & APPLIANCE SUPPLIES 377.61$          

10/19/2015 1 857(A) GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC SMALL PEBBLE QUICKLIME-45.85/TONS 6,602.40$       

10/19/2015 1 858(A) HYDROTEX INC WWTP-ACCULUBE GREASE 851.40$          

10/19/2015 1 859(A) JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES INC FLEET-PARTS FOR UNIT 238 149.37$          

10/19/2015 1 860(A) JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC. WWTP-SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 3,079.23$       

10/19/2015 1 861(A) MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO SUPPLIES 244.46$          

10/19/2015 1 862(A) MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE, INC. MATERIALS FOR BROOKS STORM SEWER REPAIR 234.80$          

10/19/2015 1 863(A) 1ST CHOICE AUTO PARTS INC PARTS 895.65$          

10/19/2015 1 864(A) O'REILLY AUTO PARTS PARTS 6.54$              

10/19/2015 1 865(A) OFFICE SOURCE SUPPLIES 24.09$            

10/19/2015 1 866(A) POLYDYNE INC AF 4500 POLYMER 4,407.50$       

10/19/2015 1 867(A) Q2A ASSOCIATES LLC FINANCE DIRECTOR SERVICES 2,352.00$       

10/19/2015 1 868(A) ST JOHNS ANSWERING SERVICE INC OCT 15-ANSWERING SERVICE 75.00$            

10/19/2015 1 869(A) SWIM LLC UTILITIES DIRECTOR SERVICES 1,092.00$       

10/19/2015 1 870(A) THOMAS SCIENTIFIC 2015 ANNUAL LAB SUPPLIES ORDER 4,036.89$       

10/19/2015 1 871(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-70/HRS 1,281.00$       

Total For 10/19/2015: 556,794.30$  

10/23/2015 1 872(E) MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM SEPT 2015-POLICE COMMAND CONTRIBUTIONS 7,042.12$       

Total For 10/23/2015: 7,042.12$       

10/26/2015 1 125730 H K ALLEN PAPER CO SUPPLIES 378.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125731 BARTZ EXCAVATING BD Bond Refund 100.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125732 BAZZANI BUILDING CO BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125733 BECKYS SEWING AND ALTERATIONS OPD-REPAIR COAT 35.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125734 CALEDONIA CHARTER TOWNSHIP PAYMENT PER JULY 1, 2006 WATER DISTRICT 22,322.82$     

10/26/2015 1 125735 COLLARD MASONRY BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125736 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 20,098.75$     

10/26/2015 1 125737 LARRY  D COOK REIMBURSEMENT-CLASS/MILEAGE/MEALS 274.49$          

10/26/2015 1 125738 CORDIER EXCAVATING BD Bond Refund 450.00$          

3



10/26/2015 1 125739 CROOKED TREE NURSERY HAULING OF TOPSOIL-120 YARDS 300.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125740 CROOKED TREE NURSERY BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125741 SCOTT D DAVIS REIMBURSEMENT FOR MEALS 39.95$            

10/26/2015 1 125742 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS NOVEMBER 2015-PHONE SERVICE AND BROADBAND 973.86$          

10/26/2015 1 125743 EMPCO INC WWTP-ATTENDANT EXAMS 216.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125744 FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING INC ENGINEERING FOR GOULD STREET RESURFACING 8,940.00$       

10/26/2015 1 125745 FRONTIER TRAFFIC SIGNAL 105.41$          

10/26/2015 1 125746 GA HUNT BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125747 HOSPITAL NETWORK HEALTHCARE SERVICE AMBULANCE MEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 114.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125748 INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF ARBORICULTURE MEMBERSHIP FOR BILL BROOKS 209.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125749 PAUL KLEEMAN MEAL DURING TRAINING 10.18$            

10/26/2015 1 125750 LANDMARK SURVEYING PC SURVEY OF OLIVER ST 10,300.00$     

10/26/2015 1 125751 LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS REGIONAL FALL 2015 MEMBERSHIP/TRAINING ASSESSMENT 1,750.66$       

10/26/2015 1 125752 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. ELECTRICAL SERVICES 360.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125753 MICHIGAN BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL ASSO NOVEMBER 2015-COBRA ADMIN FEE 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125754 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE CONTRIBUTIONS 137.16$          

10/26/2015 1 125755 MUTUAL EYE CLAIM AUDITS VISION COVERAGE PREMIUM 371.49$          

10/26/2015 1 125756 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST POSTAGE FUNDS AND INK FOR METER 1,194.99$       

10/26/2015 1 125757 OWOSSO BOLT & BRASS CO PARTS 633.74$          

10/26/2015 1 125758 RICOH USA MAINTENANCE/SUPPLIES FOR COPIERS 742.48$          

10/26/2015 1 125759 ROMA'S BACK DOOR EMPLOYEE EVENT FOOD-PAID BY EMPLOYEE DONATIONS 215.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125760 RUTHY'S LAUNDRY CENTER PUBLIC SAFETY-SEPT 2015-DRY CLEANING 298.85$          

10/26/2015 1 125761 SHIAWASSEE DISTRICT LIBRARY SATA PAYROLL SERVICES 503.74$          

10/26/2015 1 125762 SPALENY, LAWRENCE BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125763 STATE OF MICHIGAN LAB TESTING-8/28/15-10/6/15 758.00$          

10/26/2015 1 125764 STATE OF MICHIGAN SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION FEES 30.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125765 STECHSCHULTE GAS & OIL, INC. FUEL-PE 10/15/15 4,794.74$       

10/26/2015 1 125766 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION OFD-REPAIR STAIR CHAIR-2 BELTS 857.46$          

10/26/2015 1 125767 UNIVERSITY ENTERPRISES INC SMALL WATER SYSTEM OPERATION & MAINT MANUAL 63.00$            

10/26/2015 1 125768 VERIZON WIRELESS MODEM FEES FOR PUBLIC SAFETY-9/11/15-10/10/15 237.70$          

10/26/2015 1 125769 WIESENBORN, SHERYL R. BD Bond Refund 50.00$            

10/26/2015 1 873(A) ADVANCED TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS WWTP-PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE 374.79$          

10/26/2015 1 874(A) BIOCARE INC RESPIRATORY SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM 1,554.00$       

10/26/2015 1 875(A) WILLIAM C BROWN, P C PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10,725.52$     

10/26/2015 1 876(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. SCANNER FOR BUILDING OFFICE 465.00$          

10/26/2015 1 877(A) CLARK FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT, INC. OFD-RECHARGE/REPAIR 47.00$            

10/26/2015 1 878(A) DIGITAL HIGHWAY INC OPD-MODEM REPAIR 125.00$          

10/26/2015 1 879(A) EJ USA INC WATER INVENTORY ITEMS 989.05$          

10/26/2015 1 880(A) IDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION WTP-WP 200 COLILERT 917.68$          

10/26/2015 1 881(A) JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC. SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 3,073.20$       

10/26/2015 1 882(A) LOGICALIS INC SEPT 2015-NETWORK ENGINEERING 7,056.00$       

10/26/2015 1 883(A) MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE, INC. MATERIALS FOR 114 N WASHINGTON ST FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM 724.41$          

10/26/2015 1 884(A) OFFICEMAX INC SUPPLIES 168.63$          

10/26/2015 1 885(A) OWOSSO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PER FEB 22, 2011 WATER AGREEMENT 10,239.37$     

10/26/2015 1 886(A) PHYSICIANS HEALTH PLAN OF MID-MICH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM 69,668.17$     

10/26/2015 1 887(A) THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. PAINT/SUPPLIES 2,386.00$       

10/26/2015 1 888(A) SPICER GROUP, INC. DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 515.71$          

10/26/2015 1 889(A) ST JOHNS ANSWERING SERVICE INC NOVEMBER 2015-ANSWERING SERVICE 75.00$            

10/26/2015 1 890(A) USA BLUE BOOK WWTP-LAB SUPPLIES 48.37$            

Total For 10/26/2015: 187,319.37$  

4



1 TOTALS:

(1 Check Voided)

Total of 189 Disbursements: 979,793.20$  

Bank 10 OWOSSO HISTORICAL FUND

10/05/2015 10 4751 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 515 N WASHINGTON ST #2-INTERNET 98.48$            

10/05/2015 10 4752 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS OCTOBER 2015-CURWOOD CASTLE-PHONE AND INTERNET 75.49$            

10/05/2015 10 4753 DELUX TROPHIES & AWARDS HOME TOUR ITEMS-PAID BY DONATIONS 157.00$          

10/05/2015 10 4754 ROBERT V DORAN REIMBURSEMENT-HOME TOUR SUPPLIES-PAID BY DONATIONS 75.58$            

10/05/2015 10 4755 ELAINE GREENWAY REIMBURSEMENT-HOME TOUR ITEMS//FOOD-PAID BY DONATIONS 317.54$          

10/05/2015 10 4756 HANKERD SPORTSWEAR HOME TOUR YARD SIGNS (40)-PAID BY DONATIONS 320.00$          

10/05/2015 10 4757 LANCES BAKERY HOME TOUR-PAID BY DONATIONS 150.00$          

10/05/2015 10 4758 MCLAREN RENTALS, INC. HOME TOUR TEA RENTALS-PAID BY DONATIONS 302.15$          

10/05/2015 10 4759 KENDRA NICHOLS MARCH 2015-SNOW REMOVAL 175.00$          

10/05/2015 10 4760 OWOSSO CARPET CENTER, INC. GOULD HOUSE-CARPET FOR SOUTH PORCH 278.07$          

10/05/2015 10 4761 REEVES WHEEL ALIGNMENT, INC TRANSPORT FIRE TRUCK TO GOULD HOUSE FOR HOME TOUR-PAID BY DONATIONS 150.00$          

Total For 10/05/2015: 2,099.31$       

10/21/2015 10 4762 THE ARGUS PRESS HOME TOUR AD-9/13/15-PAID BY DONATIONS 72.80$            

10/21/2015 10 4763 CONSUMERS ENERGY 515 N WASHINGTON ST 131.28$          

10/21/2015 10 4764 NATHAN C COX HOME TOUR-PAID BY DONATIONS 100.00$          

10/21/2015 10 4765 GILBERT'S DO IT BEST HARDWARE & APPLIANCE HOME TOUR-PAID BY DONATIONS 69.18$            

10/21/2015 10 4766 SHANNON MAGINITY GOULD HOUSE TEA-HOME TOUR-PAID BY DONATIONS 125.00$          

10/21/2015 10 4767 OWOSSO-WATER FUND 515 N WASHINGTON ST 138.00$          

Total For 10/21/2015: 636.26$          

10/28/2015 10 4768 ABIDING IN THE VINE HENRY FORD WORKSHOP-PAID IN PART BY COOK FOUNDATION 504.00$          

10/28/2015 10 4769 S GROUP AUTOMOTIVE SECURITY DEPOSIT FOR CASTLE RENTAL 100.00$          

10/28/2015 10 4770 BRADEN, DONNA R OCTOBER 7, 2015-SPONSORED BY COOK FOUNDATION 300.00$          

10/28/2015 10 4771 THE BAGELMAN HENRY FORD WORKSHOP-PAID IN PART BY COOK FOUNDATION 39.98$            

10/28/2015 10 4772 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 515 N WASHINGTON ST #3 39.33$            

10/28/2015 10 4773 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS NOV 2015-CURWOOD CASTLE-PHONE & INTERNET 258.90$          

10/28/2015 10 4774 ROBERT V DORAN REIMBURSEMENT-BREAKFAST PAID IN PART BY COOK FOUNDATION 73.10$            

10/28/2015 10 4775 LAMPHERE'S GOULD HOUSE-WATER TO WASHER REPAIR 185.08$          

10/28/2015 10 4776 OUTDOORS PLUS, INC. MOWING-GOULD HOUSE 76.00$            

10/28/2015 10 4777 STUDIO 52 FRAME SHOP POSTER FRAMING FOR EXHIBITION 1,994.55$       

Total For 10/28/2015: 3,570.94$       

10 TOTALS:

Total of 27 Disbursements: 6,306.51$       

Bank 2 TRUST & AGENCY

10/05/2015 2 6468 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COLLECTIONS 1,659.11$       

10/05/2015 2 6469 SHIAWASSEE AREA TRANSPORTATION AGENCY REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 498.14$          

5



10/05/2015 2 6470 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 17,199.05$     

Total For 10/05/2015: 19,356.30$     

10/23/2015 2 6471 SHIAWASSEE AREA TRANSPORTATION AGENCY REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 215.41$          

10/23/2015 2 6472 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 7,508.01$       

Total For 10/23/2015: 7,723.42$       

2 TOTALS:

Total of 5 Disbursements: 27,079.72$     

REPORT TOTALS:

(1 Check Voided)

Total of 221 Disbursements: 1,013,179.43 

6



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: November 16, 2015 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: North Street - Permanent Easement for Water Main 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize acceptance of permanent easement for water main relocation along 1435 W. North Street in 
exchange for $1.00 and other considerations. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:      
 
The City’s consultant for the North Street culvert replacement project recommends acquiring a permanent 
easement on private property owned by Frederick J. Toman and Kimberly M. Toman, 1435 W. North 
Street, Owosso, MI. The reason is to relocate a 12-inch city water main away from and around the 
proposed culvert. The Tomans are willing to grant a permanent easement to the City for the sum of one 
dollar ($1.00) and other considerations as described in the easement document.  The easement will allow 
the city rights to operate and maintain the portions of water main and culvert that will reside in the 
easement area.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Total estimated cost for the permanent easement is one dollar ($1.00) and 50% of the cost of installing a 
concrete driveway as described in the easement document.  The City is awaiting an estimate from the 
engineer on the project detailing the costs for the driveway, which will be forwarded to Council prior to the 
meeting Monday.  Funds for this purchase are available in City Water Fund 591-552-833200. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH  
FREDERICK J. TOMAN AND KIMBERLY M. TOMAN FOR 

A PERMANENT EASEMENT ALONG 1435 WEST NORTH STREET 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that it is in the 
best interest of the public to reconstruct the culvert crossing under North Street over Corlett 
Creek; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is an existing water main near the culvert and the Public Service Department 
recommends relocating the water main away from and around the proposed culvert structure and 
onto adjacent privately owned property; and 
 
WHEREAS, relocation of the water main would require an easement from the property owners; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, property owners Frederick M. Toman and Kimberly M. Toman, 1435 W. North Street, 
Owosso, Michigan, are willing to grant said easement to the City for the sum of one dollar ($1.00) 
and other considerations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to agree to the terms set forth in the attached 
permanent easement documents between the city of Owosso, Michigan and 
Frederick M. Toman and Kimberly M. Toman, 1435 W. North Street, Owosso, 
Michigan. 

 
SECOND: The City Clerk is instructed and authorized to file said easement documents with 

the Shiawassee County Register of Deeds.   
 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Frederick M. Toman and 

Kimberly M. Toman for necessary expenses as set forth in the permanent 
easement documents. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the City Water Fund Account 591-552-

833200. 
 





AKKirkland
Polygon

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Rectangle



AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Rectangle

AKKirkland
Polygon



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: November 16, 2015 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Termination of bid award for the 2015 Sidewalk Program to BIBI, Inc. aka Blackjack 

Asphalt 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend City Council cancel the contract with BIBI, Inc. aka Blackjack Asphalt for the 2015 Sidewalk 
Replacement Program for the awarded amount of $61,125.00. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:        
 
On June 23, 2015, the city received bids from interested contractors for its 2015 Sidewalk Replacement 
Program.  This program replaces small sections of residential sidewalk that have been raised by tree 
roots, or are substandard in one way or another.  The contractor has done very little work and has left 
open holes and driveways inaccessible to home owners.  We have called them with complaints and they 
refuse to return calls or deal with the issues.      
 
Staff is in contact with the next lowest bidder for this project to determine if they are interested in 
completing the work.  Any potential agreement to this effect will be presented to Council at a later date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:      
 
Funds for this work are to be charged to the Major and Local Street Maintenance Funds, Account Nos. 
203-463-728-000 and 202-463-728-000. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT  
FOR THE 2015 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

WITH BIBI, INC. AKA BLACK JACK ASPHALT 
 

WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that the 
sidewalks on many of the streets in the city need to be permanently repaired and replaced; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids to permanently repair said cracked and raised 
sidewalks; a bid was received from Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt and it was determined that 
Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt  was qualified to provide such services and that it had submitted 
the lowest responsible and responsive bid; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso awarded a bid and entered into a contract with Bibi, Inc. aka 
Black Jack Asphalt for the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt has completed very little of the work specified in 
the contract, has left open holes without pouring cement, doesn’t return for long periods of time, 
and has been unable to fulfill the contract. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 

 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and 
in the public interest to terminate the contract with Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack 
Asphalt for sidewalk replacement as part of the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement 
Program. 

 

SECOND:   The city manager along with other appropriate city officials is hereby authorized 
to take the required actions to terminate the above named contract in the 
amount of $61,125.00. 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: November 12, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor Benjamin R. Frederick, City council members    
 
FROM: Susan Montenegro, assistant city manager/director of community development 
 
 
SUBJECT: Extending Due Diligence Period by amending the original purchase agreement with Cargill, 
 Incorporated. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve the amended purchase agreement with Cargill Incorporated for the purchase of 1509 W. Oliver 
property extending the due diligence period to March 15, 2016. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
Cargill Incorporated has asked for an extension of the due diligence period to March 15, 2015 because they 
have had to hire a new engineering firm which slowed the process down. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
  
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:   Susan Montenegro 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY AGREEMENT  
WITH CARGILL, INCORPORATED 

 
WHEREAS, the city entered into a purchase agreement with Cargill, Incorporated on June 15, 2015 to 
sell a vacant industrial-zoned 19.118 acre parcel commonly known as 1509 West Oliver Street and 
described as follows: 
 

PART OF S W 1/4 & PART OF SE FR 1/4 SEC 14 T7N R2E BEG AT CEN POST, TH S 1*32 1/ 
2' W 33', TH E 418.73', TH S 42*07' E 1066.59', TH N 48*30' E 34.45', TH S 43*23' E 177.7' TH S 
46*45' E 180', TH S47*52'47"W 52.92', TH S47*07'00"E 146.16', TH ON A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 245', A DELTA ANGLE OF 38*22'13" AND A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF S61*18'07"E 161.02', TH ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 245', A DELTA ANGLE OF 09*29'47" AND A CHORD BEARING DISTANCE OF S85*14'07"E 
40.56', TH S89*59'00"E 154.05', TH ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 
305.00, A DELTA ANGLE OF 36*33'20" AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
S71*42'20"E 191.31' TO THE EAST AND WEST 1/8 LINE IN THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SEC 14, TH 
N 89*59' W ALG 1/8 LN 1026.59' TO NE LN OF AARR R/W, TH N40*33 1/2 W ALONG SAID 
R/W LN TO N-S 1/4 LN, TH N TO BEG.  (EX EASMT FOR POWER LNS CON POWER CO. 
 
and 
 
SEC 14, T7N, R2E ALL THAT PART OF THE SW ¼ OF SEC 14 LYING NE’LY OF AARR R/WY; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the original purchase agreement stipulated a 180-day period for Cargill, Incorporated to 
conduct its due diligence; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cargill, Incorporated has realized the need to extend the due diligence period to March 15, 
2016. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan that: 
 

1. The due diligence period in Article VI, Section 6.1 of the Purchase Agreement is amended to 
extend the Due Diligence Period to March 15, 2016.  
 

2. The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to execute appropriate documents to 
execute the sale. 

 



ARM (#12093696) 

Owosso, Michigan  
- 1 - 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SALE AND  
PURCHASE OF PROPERTY AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO SALE AND PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 
AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is entered into by the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation (“Seller”), and CARGILL, INCORPORATED, a Delaware 
corporation (“Buyer”), effective as of November _____, 2015 (the “Effective Date”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. Buyer and Seller are parties to that certain Sale and Purchase of Property 
Agreement dated as of June 15, 2015 (the “Purchase Agreement”), relating to certain real 
property situated in Owosso, Michigan, which property is more particularly described in 
the Purchase Agreement. 
 
 B. Buyer and Seller wish to amend the Purchase Agreement as set forth 
herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the meanings 
assigned to them in the Purchase Agreement unless the context clearly requires 
otherwise. 
 
 2. The Recitals to this Amendment are hereby incorporated into and made a 
part of this Amendment. 
 
 3. Article VI, Section 6.1 of the Purchase Agreement is amended to extend 
the Due Diligence Period to March 15, 2016. 
 
 5. Except as expressly amended by this First Amendment, no term or 
provision of the Agreement is or shall be amended, modified or supplemented, and the 
Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, is hereby ratified by Seller and Buyer. 
 
 6. A facsimile or electronic signature of this Amendment shall be deemed an 
original signature and this Amendment may be signed in counterpart which, when taken 
together, will be deemed one and the same instrument. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the 
Execution Date. 
 
 
 
 



ARM (#12093696) 

Owosso, Michigan  
- 2 - 

BUYER: 
 
CARGILL, INCORPORATED  
       
By:  ___________________________________ 

Print Name: _____________________________ 

Its:  ___________________________________ 

 
SELLER: 
 
CITY OF OWOSSO 
       
By:  ___________________________________ 

Print Name: _____________________________ 

Its:  ___________________________________ 

 



Date:              11/04/2015

Building Department Report for October, 2015

From:              Charles Rau, Building Official

To:                  Owosso City Council

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

Demolition $5,000 $120 1
Electrical $0 $1,530 10
Fence - Commercial $700 $90 1
Garage, detached $14,000 $210 1
Mechanical $0 $2,895 21
Non-Res. Add/Alter/Repair $295,700 $4,902 4
Plumbing $0 $610 3
Res. Add/Alter/Repair $172,397 $3,210 24
Res. Single Family $105,000 $1,736 1
VACANT PROPERTY REGISTRATION $0 $200 2

BAC

Totals $15,503 68$592,797

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          -          42

2014 COMPARISON TOTALS

$666,820 $16,079OCTOBER, 2014 TOTALS 71



1/5Enforcements By Category 11/04/15

OCTOBER, 2015

RentalPrevious Status

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0726 REF TO RAU 10/01/15211 CORUNNA AV EXTENSION GRANTED COMM

ENF 15-0749 REF TO POLICE 10/13/15512 N SAGINAW ST REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 15-0770 Resolved 10/14/15 11/02/15810 S WASHINGTON ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0771 Resolved 10/19/15 11/02/151701 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 4

RentalPrevious Status

BUILDING VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0725 LETTER SENT 10/01/151800 CANDLEWICK CT LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0730 Resolved 10/05/15 10/05/15104 N WASHINGTON ST RESOLVED COMM

ENF 15-0731 LETTER SENT 10/06/15526 E MASON ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0732 Resolved 10/07/15 10/26/15523 E EXCHANGE ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0735 REF TO RAU 10/08/15208 W EXCHANGE ST REF TO RAU N

ENF 15-0736 Resolved 10/08/15 11/03/151010 N CHIPMAN ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0739 Resolved 10/12/15 10/20/15201 E MAIN ST RESOLVED COMM

ENF 15-0777 Resolved 10/22/15 10/22/151305 MACK ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0780 LETTER SENT 10/22/15601 N BALL ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0786 Extension Granted 10/26/15215 N BALL ST EXTENSION GRANTED COMM

ENF 15-0791 Resolved 10/27/15 11/02/15645 PINE ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0727 Resolved 10/01/15 10/08/151019 RYAN ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0728 Resolved 10/02/15 10/08/15807 N CHIPMAN ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0784 Resolved 10/23/15 10/26/15121 MICHIGAN AV REF TO TYLER Y

Total  Entries: 14

RentalPrevious Status

GARBAGE & DEBRIS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



2/5Enforcements By Category 11/04/15

OCTOBER, 2015

ENF 15-0778 Resolved 10/22/15 10/28/151420 W MAIN ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0733 Resolved 10/07/15 10/08/15525 E MAIN ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0734 Resolved 10/07/15 10/08/15205 S SHIAWASSEE ST REF TO TYLER Y

ENF 15-0737 Resolved 10/08/15 10/23/151309 PEARCE ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0772 Resolved 10/20/15 10/23/15660 N WASHINGTON ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0773 Resolved 10/20/15 10/23/15314 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0774 Resolved 10/20/15 10/30/15727 E MASON ST REF TO TYLER Y

ENF 15-0775 Resolved 10/20/15 10/21/15401 E KING ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0776 REF TO POLICE 10/21/15538 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0785 Resolved 10/26/15 10/26/151309 MACK ST REF TO TYLER Y

ENF 15-0790 LETTER SENT 10/27/151420 W MAIN ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0792 Resolved 10/28/15 10/30/151018 BEEHLER ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0793 Resolved 10/30/15 11/04/151307 N HICKORY ST RESOLVED Y

Total  Entries: 13

RentalPrevious Status

LAWN MAINTENANCE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0729 Resolved 10/02/15 10/12/15714 ABREY AV CLOSED Y

ENF 15-0789 INSPECTION PENDING 10/26/151605 W STEWART ST INSPECTION PENDING Y

ENF 15-0748 Resolved 10/13/15 10/13/15409 RANDOLPH ST RESOLVED N

Total  Entries: 3

RentalPrevious Status

LIGHTING VIOLATION
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0779 LETTER SENT 10/22/15603 N BALL ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

LIQUOR LICENSE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



3/5Enforcements By Category 11/04/15

OCTOBER, 2015

ENF 15-0765 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15644 ALGER AV LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0783 REF TO RAU 10/23/15524 S WASHINGTON ST

ENF 15-0763 Resolved 10/08/15 10/14/15344 W MAIN ST RESOLVED COMM

ENF 15-0764 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15800 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0766 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15620 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0767 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15200 S WASHINGTON ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0768 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15200 E COMSTOCK ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0769 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/14/15213 S WASHINGTON ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0781 REF TO FIRE DEPT 10/23/15524 S WASHINGTON ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 15-0782 Resolved 10/23/15 10/23/15405 S WASHINGTON ST RESOLVED COMM

Total  Entries: 10

RentalPrevious Status

MISC.
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0762 Resolved 10/14/15 10/27/15415 GENESEE ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

RENTAL UNIT VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0787 LETTER SENT 10/26/15325 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0788 LETTER SENT 10/26/151514 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

VACANT PROPERTY REG
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0740 Resolved 10/12/15 10/14/15415 CORUNNA AV LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0741 Resolved 10/12/15 10/26/15714 ABREY AV LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0742 Resolved 10/12/15 10/26/15911 BEEHLER ST LETTER SENT N



4/5Enforcements By Category 11/04/15

OCTOBER, 2015

ENF 15-0743 Resolved 10/12/15 10/22/15620 CLINTON ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0744 LETTER SENT 10/12/151403 FREDERICK ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0745 LETTER SENT 10/12/15301 STRATFORD DR LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0746 Resolved 10/12/15 10/19/15715 E MASON ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0747 LETTER SENT 10/12/15316 OAKWOOD AV LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 8

RentalPrevious Status

ZONING
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0738 Resolved 10/08/15 10/21/15117 OAKWOOD AV RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0750 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15409 GROVER ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0751 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15429 GROVER ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0752 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15413 GROVER ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0753 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15713 GROVER ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0754 Resolved 10/14/15 11/02/15304 S OAK ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0755 Resolved 10/14/15 10/22/15511 JEROME AV RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0756 Resolved 10/14/15 10/22/15521 JEROME AV RESOLVED Y

ENF 15-0757 Resolved 10/14/15 10/22/15322 S DEWEY ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0758 Resolved 10/14/15 10/22/15223 S DEWEY ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0759 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15812 E COMSTOCK ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0760 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15842 E COMSTOCK ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0761 Resolved 10/14/15 10/21/15205 OAKWOOD AV RESOLVED N

Total  Entries: 13

Total Records: 69 Total Pages: 4



5/5Enforcements By Category 11/04/15

OCTOBER, 2015

RENTAL COLUMN DEFINITIONS

Y - Yes, it's a rental
N - No, it's not a rental - owner occupied
APTS - Apartment Building
COMM - Commercial
REPO - Repossession
TRAIL - Trailer Park
VAC - Vacant House
VL - Vacant Lot
IND - Industrial
HOME OCC - Home Occupied


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	151102CouncilMinutes

	STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT
	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1 RezoningRequest-117SShiawasseeSt

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1 GlowOwossoPermission
	2 BidAward-StopSigns&Posts
	3 PurchaseAuthorization-FleetPickupTrucks
	4 PurchaseAuthorization-SewerPushCamera
	5 Warrant512
	6 CheckRegister-October2015

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1 EasementAcceptance-1435WNorthSt
	2 ContractTermination-2015SidewalkReplacementProgram
	3 PurchaseAgreementExtension-1509WOliverSt

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1 BuildingReport-October2015
	2 CodeEnforcementReport-October2015

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



